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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statentents

The Unaudited Interim Financial Statements of the Company as at and for the period ended March 31,

2017 and Notes to Financial Statements are hereto attached as Annex "A"

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations ‘

Period ended March 31. 2017 compared to the period ended March 31, 2016
The analyses of consolidated Financial Result of Operations are focused mainly on the result of
operation of the subsidiary, LBC Express, Inc.

Service Revennes

The Company’s service revenues increased by 19.0% to R2,458 million for the quarter ended March
31, 2017 from £2,066 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2016, primarily due to the increase in
revenues {rom the Logisties segment attributable to growth in both retail and corporate sales by 20.4%
and 32.8%, respectively. There are 40 net additions on Philippines retail branches

Revenues from logistics segment grew by 24.6% to $2,181 million from ®1,750 million for the
(quarter ended March 31, 2017 and 201 6, respectively, primarily due to growth in volume of air cargo,
sea cargo and courier services rendered. The growth in volume of services was mainly attributable to
the horizontal growth of the Company, evidenced by the net addition of 40 branches in the
Philippines. In addition, corporate clients generated an increase of 32.8% to 2795 million from B598

million for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 and 201 6, respectively.
Cost of Services

Cost of services increased by 17.7% to R1,612 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 from
£1,369 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 relative to growth of volume in logistics
services.

On the other hand, using percentage to revenue as basis, cost of services improved by 0.7% to 65.6%
for the quarter ended March 3 1, 2017 from 66.3% for the quarter ended March 31, 2016, mainly
attributable to lower average air freight rates of major carrier and higher container utilization.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by 21.4% to 2846 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 from R679
million for the quarter ended March 31, 2016, primarily due to the increase in volume in logistic
segment aud improvement in freight charges.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased by 24.0% to £522 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 from
421 million for the period ended March 31, 2016, primarily due to expenses paid for process

improvement consultants in which commenced towards the end of third quarter of 2016.

Moreover, head office lease contract was renewed effective October 2016 with added monthly fee and
two administrative warehouses contract stacted mid-2016.
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Other Income, Net

Other income, net, decreased to £4 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 from £21 million for
the quarter ended March 31, 2016 due to lower realized/unrealized foreign currency gain by 25.6%.
On the other hand, interest expense is higher by 81.3% for the quarter ended March 31, 2016,
primarily due to availment of long-term loans, resulting to higher outstanding notes payable as of
March 31, 2017 by 43% than the March 31 . 2016 balance.

{ncome before Income Tax

Income before income tax increased by 10.6% to £328 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2017
from £297 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2016, primarily due to improvement in revenue
and cost of services.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

As at March 31, 2017 compared to as at December 31, 2016
Assers

Current Asser:

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by 0.7% to £1,319 million as of March 31, 2017 from
P1.328 million as of December 31, 2016,

Due f‘rm_n related parties increased by 4.0% to £1,153 million as of March 31, 2017 from
£1,108 million as of December 31, 201 6, primarily due to additional advances amounting ro
£10 million per month;

Trade and other receivables, net decreased by 3.6% to Bl ;472 million as of March 31, 2017 from
£1,527 million as of December 3 1, 2016, due to net settlement of trade receivable significantly from
affiliates which includes service fees and the recognition of additional provision for bad debts based
on management assessment. |

Available-for-sale decreased by 72.1% to 70 million as of March 31, 2017 from 231 million,
mainly attributable to redemption of investment amounting to 2312 million for working capital
requirement, offset by placement of 2130 million during the quarter.

Prepayments and other current assets increased by 9.1% to 2424 million as of March 31, 2017 from

2388 million as of December 31, 201 6, primarily due to renewal of business permits of branches for

2017 which contributed to the increase by £23.8 million. There is also additional placement of 360-
- day term time deposit amoun ting to £5 million.

Nown-current Assets
Property and equipment-net, increased by 2.1% to #858 million as of March 31, 2017 from
£840 million as of December 31 , 2016, primarily due to business expansion which led to acquisitions

for leasehold improvements which Increased by 4% in net book value.

Available for sale investment, decreased by 2.1% to £449 million as of March 3 1, 2017 from
R453 million as of December 31, 2016 relative to movement in market price from B2.35/share to
B2.30/share.

Deferred tax assets, net, increased by 2.1% to 2280 million as of March 31 2017 from



£274 million as of December 31 » 2016, resulted from additional non-deductible expenses from
retirentent benefit and allowance for doubiful accounts.

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses increased by 2.9% to £1,332 million as of March 31, 2017
from 21,295 million as of December 31. 2016, primarily due to higher trade payable to outside parties
and taxes payable which comprise of VAT payable, withholding taxes - expanded and withholding
laxes on compensation. This resulted from increase in costs/expenses by 19.2%.

Current portion of notes payable decreased by 15% to 567 million as of March 31, 2017 from
2667 million as of December 31, 20] 6, primarily attributable to maturity of Chinabank loan on
Tanuary 2017 amounting to B100 million.

Income tax payable decreased by 68.5% to 80 million as of March 3 1, 2017 from 255 million as of
December 31, 2016, resulting from settlement of annual income tax on March 2017.

Transmission liability decreased by 22.7% to £361 million as of March 31 . 2017 from

2467 million as of December 31, 2016, primarily due to lower amount of merchant liabilities by

£53 million. This resulted from lower bills revenue volume between the last month of the reported
periods (March 2017 vs December 201 0) by 5%. Furthermore, money remittance payable also
decreased by 15% resulting from lower remittance revenue (other than bills revenue) between the last
month of the reported periods (March 2017 vs December 2016) by 16%.

Non-current Liabilities

Retirement benefit obligation increased by 1.1% to £729 million as of March 31, 2017 from
£721 million as of December 31. 2016 due to the net retirement benefit expense recognized for the
period.

Lease Habilities increased by 11% to £81 million as of March 3 1, 2017 from 73 million as of
December 31, 2016, primarily due to additional four vehicle leases acquired in the first quarter of the
current year.

Long-term notes payable is lower by 2.9% to £672.5 million as of March 31, 2017 from
£692.5 million as of December 31, 2016 representing the outstanding noncurrent portion of a 5-year
loan availed in 2016.

LIQUIDITY

Cash Flows

Period ended March 31, 2017 compared to the period ended March 31, 2016
Cash flows from operating activities

‘The Company's net cash from operating activities is primarily affected by income before income tax,
depreciation and amortization, retirement benefit expense, interest expense and changes in working
capital. The Company’s net cash from operating activities were 244 million and 2235 million for the
three-month period ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. For the period ended March 31 ,
2017, inflow from operating activities were generally from normal operations. For the period ended
March 31, 2016, the restricted cash setup in 2015 was fully utilized in the first quarter of 2016
causing the significant movement in changes in working capital.



Cash flows from investin 2 activities

Cash generated from investing activities for the three-month period ended March 31, 2017 is
£97 million, mainly resulting from net redemption of unit investment trust fund (UITF) amounting to
P182 million in the first quarter of 2017.

Cash used for investing activities for the three-month period ended March 31, 2016 is £80 million
- - - © . x . p
primarily from the property and equipment acquisitions.

Cash flow from financing activities
Cash outflow for financing activities for the three-month period ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 were

2152 million and 2209 million, respectively. Net availment of loans in 2017 is 2120 million and £174
million for 2017 and 20186, respectively.



PART II --

There is no other information not previous!
this section.

OTHER INFORMATION

y reported in SEC Form 17-C that needs to be reported in
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the Issuer has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC.

ENRIQUE V. REY, IR.
Acting Chief Finance Officer and Treasurer

March 15, 2017
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LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

{With Comparative Audited Figures as at December 31, 2016)

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016
{(Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 3, 19 and 20) £1,318,780,690  £1,327,790,727
Trade and other receivables (Notes 4, 19 and 20) 1,472,060,892 1,526,719,330
Due from related parties (Notes 13, 19 and 20) 1,152,660,941 1,107,999,329
Available-for-sale investments {Notes 8 and 20) 70,037,816 250,937,154
Prepayments and other current assets {Note 5) 423,594,983 388,089,197
Total Current Assets 4,4%7,135,322 4,601,535,737
Noncarrent Assets
Property and equipment (Note 6) 858,372,846 840,476,927
Intangible assets (Note 7) 257,569,944 266,047,661
Available-for-sale investments (Notes 8, 19 and 20) 448,638,170 458,391,174
Deferred tax assets (Note 16) 280,174,377 274,380,370
Security deposits (Notes 17 and 20) 232,438,070 226,255,209
Other noncurrent assets (Note 5) 78,873,352 70,150,604
Total Noncurrent Assets 2,156,066,759 2,135,701,945
$6,593,202,081  £6,737,237,682
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts and other payables (Notes 9, 19 and 20) £1,332,482,524  £1,294,903,590
Due to related parties (Notes 13, 19 and 20) 18,470,552 18,509,332
Current portion of notes payable (Notes 11, 19 and 20) 566,835,341 666,715,500
Transmissions liability (Notes 10, 19 and 20) 361,148,723 467,284,795
Current portion of lease liabilities (Notes 17, 19 and 20) 37,687,331 50,826,683
Income rax pavable 80,145,939 254,758,265
Total Current Liabilities 2,396,770,410 2,752,998,165
Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement benefit liability (Note 18) 728,718,600 721,026,661
Notes payable - net of current portion (Notes 1 1, 19 and 20) 672,500,000 692,500,000
Lease liabilitics - net of current portion (Notes 17, 19 and 20) 81,336,123 73,242,401
Other noncurrent liabilifies 32,039,394 34,477,440
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,514,594,117 1,521,246,502
3,911,364,527 4,274,244 667
Equity
Equity attributable to sharehalders of the Parent Company
Capital stock (Note 12) 1,425,865,471 1,425,865,471
Retained eamings 1,011,905,455 782,414,079
Accumulated comprehensive income 297,094,263 305,677,402
2,734,865,189 2,513,956,952
Non-controlling interests (53,027,635) (50,963,937)
Total Equity 2,681,837,554 2,462,993,015
$6,593,202,081  £6,737,237,682

See accompanying Notes 10 herim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.



LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Three Months Ended March 31

2017 2016
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
SERVICE REVENUE (Note 21) P2,458,185,460 P2,066,476,644
COST OF SERVICES (Note 14) 1,612,082,623 1,369,277,267
GROSS PROFIT 846,102,837 697,199,377
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 15) 522,447,111 421,248,502
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Foreign exchange gains - net 23,837,630 32,042,499
Interest income 1,498,793 736,021
Interest expense (Notes 11 and 17) (22,069,731) (12,172,860)
Others - net 1,107,997 91,105
4,374,689 20,696,765
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 328,030,415 296,647,640
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 16) 100,104,099 90,116,331
NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 227,926,316 206,531,309
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods
Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement benefit plan - net of tax (219,476) 442,510
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods
Unrealized fair value gain (loss) on available-for-sale
mvestments (Note 8) (8,526,191 93,620,676
Currency translation gain (loss) - net (336,110) 4,197,570
(9,081,777 98,260,756
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P218,844,539 £304,792,063
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the Parent Company 2229,491,376 £208,465,956
Non-controlling interests (1,565,060) (1,934,647)
NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 227,926,316 £206,531,309
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the Parent Company £220,908,237 £305,410,746
Non-controlling interests (2,063,698) (618,681)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 218,844,539 £304,792,065
BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 22) £0.16 £0.15

See gecompanying Notes o Interim Condensed Consolidated F inancial Statements.
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LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended March 31

2017 (Unaudited) 2016 (Unaudited)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income before income tax £328,030,415 296,647,640
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amartization {Notes 6, 7, 14 and 15) 72,623,560 63,480,379
[nterest expense (Notes 11 and 17} 22,069,731 12,172,860
Retirement expense, net of benefits paid and contribution
1o retirement plan 7,378,403 15,125,381
Giain on disposal of property and equipment
and intangible assets (Notes 6 and 7) (8,000) (69.423)
Interest income (Note 3) {1,498,793) (736,021)
Linrealized foreign exchange losses ( gains) - net (2,500,387) 363,572
Operating income before changes in working capital 426,094,929 386,984,388
Changes in working capital:
Decrease (increase) in;
Trade and other receivables 54,658,438 (75,536,401)
Due from refated parties (Note 13) (44,661,613) (58,037,472)
Prepayments and other assets (35,505,786) 156,491,531
Security deposits {6,182,.861) (4,306,999)
Increase {decrease) in:
Accounts and other payables (Note 9) 34,432917 122,758,148
Transmissions lability (106,136,071) (127,187,233)
Due 10 related parties (Note 13) (38,780) 4,981,805
Net cash generated from operations 322,661,173 406,147,767
[nterest received 1,498,793 736,021
Income tax paid (280,416,372) (171,829,679
Net cash provided by operating activities 43,743,594 235,054,109
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Praceeds from:
Redemption of investunents in UITF classified as
available-for-sale investments 312,126,151 -
Disposal of property and equipment and intangible assets 8,000 183,500
Ifcrease in other noncurrent assets (8,722,748) -
Acquisitions of? ~
Intangible assets (4,140,440) (1,261,575)
Property and equipment (Note 23) (71,900,912) (79,178,335)
Available-for-sale investmenis (130,000,000) -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 97,370,051 (80,256,410)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from notes payable 136,835,341 533,696,457
Payments of lease Habilities (13,484,086) (12,172,860)
Interest paid (Notes 11 and 17) (18,923,714) (22,690,184)
Payments of notes payable (256,715,500) (708,034,227)
Net cash generated from financing activities (152,287,959) (209,200,814)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (11,174,314) (54,403,113)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,164,277 2,217,259
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,327,790,727 979,102,489
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR (Note 3) #1,318,780,690 £926,916,633

See accompanying Notes to lnterim Condensed Consolidated Eimancial Statemeis.



L.BC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS '

1. Corporate Information

LBC Express Holdings, Inc. {referred to as the “Parent Company” or “LBCH™), formerly
Federal Resources Investment Group Inc. (FED), was registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on July 12, 1993,

The ultimate parent of the Parent Company is LBC Development Corporation (LBCDC).

The Parent Company undertook an Initial Public Offering and on December 21,2001 LBCH’s
shares were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Parent Company invests, purchases or disposes real and personal property of every kind and
description, including shares of stock, bonds, debentures, notes, evidences of indebtedness, and
other securities or obligations of any corporation, association, domestic and foreign.

The Parent Company is a public holding company that has investments in businesses of
messengerial either by sea, air or land of letters, parcels, cargoes, wares, and merchandise;
acceptance and remittance of money, bills payment and the like; and performance of other allied
general services from one place of destination to another within and outside of the Philippines.

The previous registered office and principal place of business of the Parent Company was at
No. 35 San Antonio Street, San Francisco Del Monte, Quezon City. On October 12, 2015, the
SEC approved the change in principal office of the Parent Company to LBC Hangar, General
Aviation Centre, Domestic Airport Road, Pasay City, Metro Manila, Philippines.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these interim condensed
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been constantly applied to

all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying inlerim condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared using the historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale (AF S) investments that has
been measured at fair value. The interim condensed consolidated financial statements are
presented in Philippine Peso. All amounts are rounded off to the nearest peso, except when
otherwise indicated. ' '

Difference in accounting periods

The Group consolidated the non-coterminous financial statements of its subsidiaries using their
November 30 fiscal year end and the three months ended February 28 first quarter end financial
statements since it is impracticable for the said subsidiaries to prepare financial statements as of the
same date as the reporting date of the Parent Company.

Management exercised judgment in determining whether adjusiments should be made in the
intenim condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group pertaining to the effects of
significant transactions or events of its subsidiaries that occur between March 1, 2017 and 2016
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and the date of the Parent Company’s financial statements which is March 31, 2017 and 2016 and
between December 1, 2016 and the comparative date of the Parent Company’s financial position
which is December 31, 2016. The interim condensed consolidated financial statements were
adjusted to effect LBCE’s availment of bank loans in March 2017 and 2016 amounting to 246.84
million and £407.69 million, respectively; settlement of bank loans in March 2017 and 2016
amounting to P57.97 million and £189.00 million, respectively; additional investment and
redemption of unquoted AFS investment in March 2017 amounting to 2130.00 million and
£312.13 million, respectively; payment of annual income taxes in March 2017 and 2016 amounting
io £254.76 million and ®130.59 million, respectively, and the adjustment to reflect the decrease
and increase of fair value of quoted AFS investment by £56.57 million and 233.16 million for the
period March 1 to March 31, 2017 and March | to March 31, 2016.

The consolidated financial staiements as of December 31, 2016 were adjusted to effect LBCE’s
additional availment and settlement of bank loans in December 2016 amounting to

£136.72 million and £246.24 million, respectively; the adjustment to reflect the increase in fair
value of quoted AFS investment by £50.72 million for the period December 1 to December 3 L,
2016, and the settlement of advances to an affiliate on December 21, 2016 amounting to £198.00
million.

There were no other significant transactions that transpired between March 1, 2017 to March 31,
2017, December 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 and March 1, 2016 to March 31, 2016.

Statement of Compliance

The accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with the Philippine Accounting Standard 34, Interim Financial
Reporting. Accordingly, the interim condensed consolidated finaneial statements do not include
all the information and disclosures required in the annual audited consolidated financial
statements, and should be read in conjunction with the Group’s annual audited financial
statement as al and for the year ended December 31, 2016, which have been prepared in
accordance with PFRS.

The Group’s interim condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared for inclusion in
an offering circular in relation to a planned capital raising activity.

Basis of Consolidation

The interim condensed consolidated financial slalements include the accounts of the Parent
Compamy and all of its subsidiarics where the Parent Company has control. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

¢ Power over the investee (i.c., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

e The ability to use its power over the invesiee to affect its returns
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When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
ineluding:

»  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
= Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
»  The Group’s voting rights and potential votin g rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes 10 one or more of the three elements of control.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions, including income, expenses and
dividends, are eliminated in full. Profit and losses resulting from intercompany transactions
that are recognized in assets arc climinated in full.,

There were no changes in the Parent Company’s ownership interests in its subsidiaries from
January 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the interim condensed consolidated financial
statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s annual
consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016, except for the
following amendments which the Group adopted starting January 1, 2017. Except as otherwise
mdicated, the adoption of these amendments have no material impact on the Company’s financial
statements:

= Amendment to PFRS 12, Clurification of the Scope of the Standard (Part of Annual
Inprovements to PERSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)
The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relatin g
to summarized {inancial information, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is
classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale. These
amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.

° Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign
exchange gains or losses). On initial application of the amendments, entities are not required
to provide comparative information for preceding periods. Early application of the
amendments is permitted. Application of amendments will result in additional disclosures in
the 2017 consolidated financial statements of the Group.

° Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition of Deferred Tax dssets for Unrealized
Lossey
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity
should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit
may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
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Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application
of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may
be recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained eamnings and other
components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact. Early application
of the amendments is permitted. These amendmenLs are not expected to have any impact to
the Group.

dnnual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

Amendment to PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,
Changes in Methods of Disposal

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale 1o a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be
a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies
that changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.

Amendment to PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, Servicing Contracts

PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The
amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute
continuing involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However, comparative
disclosures are not required to be provided for any period beginning before the annual period
i which the entity first applies the amendments.

Amendment to PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments ro PFRS 7 io Condensed Interim
Financial Statements

This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
linancial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial
report unless they provide a significaut update to the information reported in the most recent

annual report.

Amendment to PAS 19, Employee Benefits, Discount Rate: Regional Market Issue

This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high
quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

Amendment to PAS 34, Inferim Financial Reporting, Disclosure of Information *Elsewhere in
the Interim Financial Report’

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures
must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).



fffective beginning on or after January 1, 2018

Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and
the accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria
are met. Early application of the amendments is permitted. These amendments are not
expected to have any impact to the Group.

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Insiruments, with
PIRS 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implementing the forthcoming insurance contracts standard. They
allow entities to choose between the overlay approach and the deferral approach to deal with
the wransitional challenges. The overlay approach gives all entities that issue insurance
contracts the option to recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than profit or Joss, the
volatility that could arise when PFRS 9 is applied before the new insurance contracts standard
is issued. On the other hand, the deferral approach gives entities whose activities are
predominantly connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from applying
PFRS 9 until the earlier of application of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard or
January 1, 2021.

The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available to an entity if it has not
previously applied PFRS 9. These amendments are not applicable to the Group.

PFRS 13, Revene from Conracts with Customers

PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under PFRS 135, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to
measuring and recognizing revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under PFRSs. Either a full or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of this standard.

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments

PEFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard infroduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but providing
comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are



-6-

generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions. The Group did not carly adopt
PFRS 9.

The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no
1mp’lct on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial liabilitics. The Gronp
is currently assessing the impact of adoplmg this standard.

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or ather qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They also
clarify that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or
Joint venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method,
elect to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment enmy associate or joint
venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This
clection 1s made separately for cach investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of
the date on which (a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b)
the associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the investment entity
associate or joint venture first becomes a parent. These amendments should be applied
retrospectively, with earlier application permitted. These amendments are not expected to
have any impact to the Group.

Amendments to PAS 40, lnvestment Property, Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there 1s evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments should be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Retrospective application is only permitted if this is possible without (he use of hindsight.
These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the
transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or non-
monelaw liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment
or receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation may be applied on a fully retrospective
basis. Entities may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in
its scope that are initially recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which
the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented
as comparative information in the consolidated financial statements of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
this standard.
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Effective beginning on or afier January 1, 2019

PFRS 16, Leases

Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating or
{inance leases in accordance with PAS 17, Leases. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset
model. Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most
leases on their balance sheets, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize
interest on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or less
or for which the underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements.

The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose
mere information in their consolidated financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure
1o residual value.

Entities may early adopt PFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted PFRS 15. When
adopting PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach, with options to use certain transition reliefs. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
ellective date once adopted locally. This standard is expected to significantly impact its
leasing arrangements for outlets which are currently accounted for as operating lease, as the
Group is already required to recognize the related assets and liabilities in its consolidated
statement of financial position.

Deferred effectivity

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joinr Vengure

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or
joint venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or
loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business,
however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or
Jjoint venture. :

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council postponed the original
effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting
Standards Board has completed its broader review of the research project on equity accounting
that may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. These amendments are not expected to have any
impact to the Group.
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Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the interim condensed consolidated financial statements requires management
fo make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the affected asset or liability in the future.
Except as otherwise stated, the significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions used
in the preparation of the interim condensed consolidated financial statements are consistent with

those used in the annual consolidated financial stalements as at and for the year ended

December 31, 2016.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of: -

March 31, December 31,

2017 2016

{Unaudited) {Audited)

Cash in banks P682,964,912 £939,534,180
Cash on hand 186,976,995 174,890,603
Cash equivalents 448,838,783 213,363,944
£1,318,780,690  £1,327,790,727

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates.

Cash equivalents include short-term placements made for varying periods of up to three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the prevailing

short-term placements rates.

Trade and Other Receivables

BN

This account consists of

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016
{Unaudited) (Aundited)
‘Trade receivables - outside parties £1,069,734,416  £1,023,354,253
Trade receivables - related parties (Note 13) 419,797,608 518,466,319
1,489,532,024 1,541,820,572
Less allowance for impainnent losses 67,801,322 55,694,985
1,421,730,702 1,486,125,587

Other receivables:
Advances to officers and employees 38,207,255 26,117,789
Others 12,122,935 14,475,954
£1,472,060,892 £1,526,719,330

Trade receivables arise from sale of services related to inbound and outbound courier services,
handling and consolidation services with normal credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
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Advances 10 officers and employees consist mainly of noninterest-bearing advances which are
subject to liquidation upon completion of the business transaction and personal advances subject
10 salary deductions.

The Group performed reassessment of the collectability of its receivables and as a result,
recognized additional provision for itnpairment losses. These were recognized under upexatmg

expenses in the intertm consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Allowance for impairment losses were specifically identified as impaired. These pertams to trade
receivables from outside parties.

Portion of trade receivable - outside parties as of December 31, 2016 amounting to £40.79 million
are assigned in relation to a bank loan availed in 2016 (see Note 11).

The movements in allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables follow:

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016
(Unaudited) {Audited)
Balance at beginning of period $55,694,985 £39,891,364
Provisions (Note 15) 12,106,337 15,803,621
267,801,322 355,694,985
3. Prepayments and Gther Assets
This account consists of:
March 31, December 31,
2017 2016
-(Unaudited) {Audited)
Input value-added tax (VAT) £166,948,557 2184,851,516
Materials and supplies 112,072,931 104,972,605
Prepayments:

Rent 50,539,889 41,012,242
Taxes 28,686,075 4,911,428
[nsurance 25,387,580 11,576,755
Advertising 22,496,228 11,995,164
Software maintenance cost 2,727,307 4,854,547
Others 8,206,018 15,957,769
Creditable withholding taxes (CWT) 48,984,634 46,767,004
Short-term cash investments 27,419,116 27,340,771
Other current assets 9,000,000 4,000,000
502,468,335 458,239,801

Less noncurrent portion oft
VAT on capital goods 55,804,950 54,943,647
Prepaid rent 23,068,402 15,206,957
Total noncurrent portion £78,873,352 £70,150,604
Total current portion £423,594,983 £388,089,197
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tnput VAT is applied against output VAT. Management believes that the remaining balance is
recoverable in future periods.

Materials and supplies consist of office supplies and packing materials to be used in the Group’s
operations. Materials and supplies recognized as part of cost of services in the statements of
comprehensive income for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
£81.50 million and £101.83 million, respectively.

Prepaid advertising consists of advances for billboards and multimedia endorsements.

Other prepayments pertain o unamortized dues and subscriptions,

CWTs are attributable to taxes withheld by the withholding agents which are creditable against the
income tax payable.

Short-term cash investments are time deposits with maturity of more than three months from the
date of acquisition but not exceeding one year.
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In 2015, the Company purchased a computer hardware on a long-term payment arrangement. The
liability is noninterest bearing and payable over 60 months. As of March 31, 2017, the outstanding
liability amounted to £41.38 million, £32.04 million of which is reported under “other current
liabilities™ in the consolidated statements of financial position.

7. Intangible Assets

The rollforward analysis of this account follows:

For the three months ended March 31, 2017

(Unaudited)
Development

Software ifl Progress Total
Costs
At beginning of period £335,393,881 63,140,574 P398,534,455
Additions 2,276,108 1,864,332 4,140,440
At end of period 337,669,989 65,004,906 402,674,895
Accamulated Amortization
At beginning of period 132,486,794 - 132,486,794
Amortization (Note 15) 12,618,157 - 12,618,157
At end of period 145,104,951 - 145,104,951
Net Book Value £192,565,038 £65,004,906 £257,569,944

For the year ended December 31, 2016 (Audited)

Development

Software in Progress Total
Costs
At beginning of year £134,430,313 243,687,774 £378,118,087
Additions 198,861,104 (198,861,104) -
Disposa) 2,157,464 18,313,904 20,471,368
Reclussification (55.000) - (55,000)
Atend of year 335,393,881 63,140,574 368,534,455
Accumulated Amortization
At beginning of year 101,736,602 - 101,736,602
Amortization {Note 15) 30,779,219 - 30,779,219
Disposal (29.027) - (29.027)
At end of year 132,486,794 - 132,486,794
Net Book Value £202,907,087 £63,140.574 £266,047,661

Available-for-Sale Investments

AFS Investments mainly represent the Group’s investment in unquated unit investment trust
fund and investment in the quoted shares of stock of Araneta Properties, Inc.



Movement of the AFS investments follows:

For the three For the year
months ended ended
March 31, December 31,
2017 2016
(Unaudited) {Audited)
Quoted:
Balance at beginning of period £458,391,174  R212,596,951
Additions - 757,920
Sale of shares - (332,450)
Unrealized fair value gain (loss) (9,753,004) 245,368,753
448,638,170 458,391,174
Unquoted:
Balance at beginning of period 250,937,154 -
Additions 130,000,000 400,000,000
Redemption (312,126,151)  (150,000,000)
Unrealized fair value gain 1,226,813 937,154
70,037,816 250,937,154
B518,675,986  £709,328,328
Less current portion £70,037,816 £250,937,154
Total noneurrent portion £448,638,170 £458,391,174
Accounts and Other Payables
This account consists of:
March 31, December 31,
2017 2016
{(Unaudited) (Audited)
Trade payable - outside parties £551,858,230 £553,696,573
"Trade payable - related parties (Note 13) 10,325,950 10,239,262
Taxes payable 250,549,425 175,914,534
Accruals:
Salaries and wages 193,318,685 187,053,321
Rent and utilities 80,474,714 91,142,838
Contracted jobs 70,580,882 61,027,104
Claims and losses 42,171,409 55,388,469
Professional fees 10,199,380 6,980,356
Outside services 8,979,535 7,086,121
Taxes 8,793,703 8,509,450
Advertising 6,004,114 21,393,676
Others 48,128,471 63,177,810
Government agencies contributions payables 20,092,484 21,971,215
Qthers (Note 13) 31,005,542 31,322,861
$1,332,482,524 $£1,294,903,590
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10. Transmissions Liability

Transmissions liability re

presents money transfer remittances by clients that are still

outstanding, and not yet claimed by the beneficiaries as at reporting date. These are due and

demandable.

Transmissions liability amounted to 361.14 million and £467.2

and December 31, 2016, respectively.

8 million as at March 31, 2017

. Notes Payable

The Group has outstanding notes payable to various local banks
at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 are described below:

March 31, 2017 (Unaudited)

. The details of these notes as

Date of Outstanding
Banl/Related Party  Availment Balance Macuricy Interest Rate Payment Terms
Banco de Ora Various R§8,750,000 June 2017 Fixed rate, Clean; Interest payable
availments in 4.00%  every monih, principal to
2016 be psid on maturity date
Baneo de Oro Various 763,750,000 Vurious maturities Fixed rate, With mortgage; Interest
availments in in 2016 to 2021 4.00% payable every month,
2016 prineipal payable quarterly
Unionbank of the Yarious 250,000,000 Yarious maturities Fixed rate, Clean; Intercst payable
Philippines availments in in 2017 6.00% every month, principal to
2016 be paid on maturity date
Rizal Comnercial Various 136,835,341 Various maturities Fixed rate, Clean; Interest payable
Baaking Corporation  availment in in 2017 6.00%  every month, principal to
2015 be paid on maturity date
Total P1,239.335.341 )
Current portion of notes payabie P566,835,341
Nonecurrent portion B672,500,000

December 31, 2016 (Audited)

Bank

Date of Availment

Oulstanding
Balance

Maturity

Interest Rate

Terms

Banco de Oro

Banco de Oro

Unionbank of the
Philippines

Rizal Commercial
Banking Corporation
{RCBC)

China Trust Banking
Corporation

Various availments
in 2016

Various availments
in 2016

Various availments
in 2016

Vaurious availment
in 2013

December 20, 2016

£100,000,000

772,500,000

250,000,000

136,715,500

100.000,000

March 2017

Various maturitics
in 2016 to 2021

Various maturitics
in20i7

Various maturities
in 2017

January 10, 2017

Fixed rate,
4.00%

Fixed rate,
4.00%

Fixed rate,
6.00%

Fixed rate,
6.00%

Fixed rote

3.50%

Clean; Interest payable every
month, principul to be paid

on maturity date

With mortgage: Interest

payable every month,

principal payable quarterly

Clean; Interest payable every
month, prineipal o be paid

on malurity date

Clean; Interest payable every
month, principal to be paid

on maturity date

With AR assignment;
Interest payable every

month:, principal 1o be paid

on maturity date

Total

P1.359.215.500

Current portion of notes payable

666,715,500

Noncurrent portion

$692,500.000
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The Notes F acility Agreement entered by the Group with Banco De Oro (BDO) in May 2016
1s with a credit line facility amounting to R800.00 million. The loan is secured with real estate
morigage on land owned by the Group's affiliates (see Note 14).

Upon loan availment in 2016, the Group, under a Deed of Assignment of Receivables, agreed
to sell, assign and transfer, on a with recourse basis, unto RCBC, certain receivables under
“Trade receivables - outside parties. Total receivables assigned amounted to 201.89 million,
£161.10 million of which was collected in 2016.

Interest expense amounted to £19.00 million and 27.65 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The loans were used primarily for working capital requirements and are not subject to any loan
covenants.

. Equity

Cuapital stock
As of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the details of the Parent Company’s common
shares follow:

Number of
Shares of Stocks Amount
Capital stock - B1 par value
Authorized 2,0600,000,000  £2,000,000,000
Issued and outstanding 1,425,865,471 1,425,865,471

. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, the Group transacts with related parties consisting of its
ultimate parent, [.BCDC and aftiliates. Affiliates include those entities in which the owners of
the Group have ownership interests. These transactions include royalty, delivery, service and
management fees and loans and cash advances. Except as otherwise indicated, the outstanding
accounts with related parties shall be settled in cash. The transactions are made at terms and
prices agreed upon by the parties.

Details of related party transactions and balances for the three months ended March 3 1,2017
and for the year ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Transaction Outstanding
amounts for the Receivalde
three months ended balance as at
Narch 3¢, 2017 March 31, 2017
{Unaudited) (Unaundited) Terms Conditions

Due from related purties (Trade receivables)

Affitiates
a.) Delivery fee, management
fee., financial lostam Peso
Padala (IPP) fuliitiment fee Noninterest-bearing; due Unsecured,
{(Notes 4 and 213 £91,474,539 £421,285,878 and demandable no impairment
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Transaction Outstanding
amounts for the Receivable
three mounths ended balance as at
March 31,2017 March 31,2017
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) Terms Conditions
Due from_related parties { Non-trade receivables)
Uttimate parens company
Noninterest-bearing; due Unsecured,
b.) Advances 8,663,189 RO22,238,033 and demandahle no impairment
Affiliates
Nouinterest-bearing; due Unsecured,
b.) Advances 68,309,617 219,625,914 and demandable no impairment
Qfficer
Noninterest-bearing; due Unsecured,
b.} Advances 1,500,000 10,796,995 and demandable no impairment
P1,152,660,942
Transaction Quistanding
wmounts for the Receivable

three months ended
Murck 31, 2016

balance as at
December 31, 2016

(Unaudited) {(Unaudited) Teons Conditions
Due from related partics {Trade receivables)
Affiliates
.} Delivery fiee, management
fee, financial Instant Peso
Padala {IPP) fulfillment fee Noninteresi-bearing; due Unsecured,
(Notes 4 and 213 £36.818.300 F518466319 and demandable no impairment
Due from selated parties (Non-rade receivables)
Liimate pareat company
Noninterest-bearing; due Unsecured,
h.y Advances R30,892,359 £913,895,352 and demandable no impainment
Affiliares
Noninterest-bearing; due Unsecured,
by Advances 22220485 184,806,083 and demandable na impainment
Officer
Nonimerest-bearing; due Unsecured,
h.) Advances 12,599 9,296,994 and demandable 00 impairmen
£1,107,999,329
Transuction Outstanding
amounts for the Payable

three months ended

balance as at

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017
{Unaudited) {(Unaudited) Terms Conditions
Due to related parties { Trade payables)
Heimate Parent Company
Noninterest-bearing; due
.} Royalty fee (Note 9) 858,796,287 £10,325,950 and demandable Unsecured
AffHliate
&) Guarantes fee Noninterest-bearing; due
(Note 9) 7,142,857 5,238,095 and demandsble Unsecured

R15,564,045
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Transaction Outstanding
amounts for the Payable
three months ended balance as at
March 31, 2017 Mareh 31, 2017
(Unaudiied) {Unaudited) Terms Conditions
Due 10 related panies (Non-trade payables)
Uliimate Parent Company
Noninterest-hearing; due
b} Advances 2 15,694,463 and demandable Unsecured
Affilicue
Nouinterest-bearing; due
b.) Advances - 2,516,896 and demandable Unsecured
Officer
Noninterest-bearing; due
b,) Advances - 259,193 and demandable Unsecured
£18,470,552
Key management personnel
Noninterest-bearing; due
Safaries and wages B22,136,262 ~- and demandable Unsecured
Other short-term employee Noninterest-bearing; due
benefits 3,997,859 - and demandable Unsecured
Noninterest-bearing; duc
Retirement benefits (Note 18) 7.566,240 157,504,739 and demandable Unsecured
R157,504,739 )
‘Transaction Outstanding
amounts for the Payable
three months ended balance as at
March 31, 2016 December 31,2016
(Unaudited) {Unaudited) Terms Conditions
Due 10 refated partics { Trade payvables)
Ultimate Parens Company
Noninterest-bearing; due
¢.) Royalty fee (Note ) R50,554,743 £10,239,262 and demandable Unsecured
Alffilicue
d.) Guaranlee fee Noninterest-bearing: due
(Note 9 3 - 4671229 and demandable Unsecured
£14,910,491
Due 1o related parties (Non-trade pavables)
Lilthnate Parent Company
Noninterest-bearing; due
b} Advances P P135,694 463 and demandable Unsecured
Affitiare
Noninterest-bearing; due
b.) Advances 120.834 2,559,566 and demandable Unsecured
Qfilcer
Noninterest-bearing; due
.} Advances 255303 and demandable Unsccured

18,509,332
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Trassaction Outstanding
amaounts for the Payable
three months ended balance as at

Mareh 31,2016 December 31,2016

(Unaudited) {Unaudijted) Terms Conditions

Kev management personnel

Noninterest-bearing; due

Salaries and wages 23,544,220 B~ and demandable Unsecured
Other short-term employee Noninterest-bearing; due
benelits 3923914 - and demandable Unsecured
Noninterest-bearing; due
Retirement benelits (Mote 18) 3,173,493 149,938,499 and demandable Unsecured
£149 938 499 )

4. In the normal course of business, the Group fulfills the delivery of balikbayan boxes and
performs cerlain administrafive finctions on behalf of its international affiliates. The
Group charges delivery fees and service fees for the fulfillment of these services based on
agreed rates.

b.  The Group regularly makes advances to and from related parties to finance working capital
requirements and as part of their cost reimbursements arrangement. These unsecured
advances are non-interest bearing and payable on demand.

c. LBCDC (Licensor), the Ultimate Parent Company, granted to the Group (Licensee) the
full and exclusive right to use the LBC Marks within the Philippines, in consideration for a
continuing royalty rate of two point five percent (2.5%) for 2017 and 2016 of Licensee’s
Gross Revenues which is defined as any and all revenue from all sales of products and
services, including all other income of every kind and nature directly and/or indireetly
arising from, related 1o and/or connected with Licensee’s business operations (including,
without limitation, any proceeds from business interruption insurance, if any), whether for
cash or credit, wherever made, earned, realized or accrued, excluding any sales discounts
and/or rebates, value added tax.

d. The Group entered into a loan agreement with BDO which is secured with real estate
mortgage on various real estate properties owned by the Group’s affiliate. In consideration
of the affiliate’s accommodation to the Group’s request 1o use these properties as loan
collateral, the Group agreed to pay the affiliate, every April 1 of the year starting April 1,
2016, a guarantee fee of 1% of the outstanding loan and until said properties are released
by the bank as loan collateral.

14. Cost of Services

This account consists of

For the three months ended

March 31, March 31,

. 2017 2016

{Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Cost of delivery and remittance $689,813,694 £512,219,845
Salanes and benefits 482,507,267 445,692,120
Utilities and supplies 180,317,106 187,928,110
Rent (Note 17) 140,180,660 124,268,460

(Forward)
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For the three months ended

March 31, March 31,
2017 2016

(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Depreciation and amortization £50,568,441 247,119,348
Retirement benefit expense 24,975,970 17,846,507
Repairs 21,069,434 19,025,204
Transportation and travel 12,859,927 8,655,256
Insurance 8,344,927 5,679,361
Others 1,445,197 843,056

£1,612,082,623 21,369,277, 267

15. Operating Expenses
This account consists of:

For the thres months ended

March 31, March 31,

2017 2016

(Unaudited) {Unaudited)

Salaries and benefits £114,435,076 R06,649,138
Royalty 58,796,287 50,554,743
Rent (Note 17) 56,823,258 47,233,202
Professional fees 51,544,279 20,209,853
Utilities and supplies 40,666,519 30,771,539
Travel and representation 35,895,921 23,540,820
Taxes and licenses 34,373,613 28,265,995
Advertising and promotion 33,888,556 41,840,929
Depreciation and amortization 22,055,118 16,361,029
Claims and losses 19,968,393 23,490,856
Provision for impairment loss 12,106,337 9,364,808
Software maintenance costs 11,196,200 13,691,190
Retirement benefit expense 7,419,680 3,991,048
Commission expense 6,095,361 3,946,072
Insurance 5,742,071 5,340,099
Dues and subscriptions 3,894,122 1,813,474
Repairs and maintenance 2,086,502 1,370,200
Others 5,459,818 2,813,507

£522,447,111 R421,248,502

Others mainly comprise of bank charges and other administrative expenses.
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16, Income Taxes

Provision for (benefit from) inconie tax consists of:

For the three months ended

March 31, March 31,

2017 2016

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Current 2105,804,046 128,225,685
Deferred (5,699,947 (38,109,354)

£100,104,099 290,116,331

Details of the Group’s deferred income tax assets as at March 31, 2017 and December 31,
2016 follow:

March 31, December 31,

2017 2016

{(Unaudited) (Audited)

Retirement benefit Lability £215,730,938 £212,833,851
Accrued bonus and leave credits 33,149,516 34,764,344
Allowance for impairment foss 20,340,397 16,708,496
Deferred lease lability 11,009,669 11,062,231
MCIT 255,394 255,394
NOLCO - 209,623
Capitalized borrowing costs (575,669) (628,002)
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (750,116) (1,868,793)
Others 1,014,248 1,043,226

£280,174,377 £274,380,370

17. Lease Commitments

(a) Operating Lease

The following are the operating lease agreements entered into by the Group:

1.

i

Operating lease agreement covering its current corporate office space for a period of
five years from October 20, 2016. The lease agreement is renewable at the Group’s
option at such terms and conditions which may be agreed upon by both parties. The
lease agreement includes rental rate escalations during the term of the lease. The lease
agreement also requires the Group to pay security deposits.

Operating lease agreements covering various service centers and service points within
the Plulippines for a period of two to five years, renewable at the Group’s option at
such terms and conditions which may be agreed upon by both parties. These Jease
agreements include provision for rental rate escalations including payment of security
deposits and advance rentals.

Operating [ease agreement with a local bank covertng transportation equipment for a
period of three years. The lease agreement does not include escalation rates on
monthly payments,



(b)

There are no contingent rents for the above lease agreements.

Rent expense was recognized as follows:

For the three months ended

March 31, March 31,

2017 2016

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Cost of services £140,180,660 £124,268,460
Operating expenses 56,823,258 47,233,202
£197,003,918 R171,501,662

The Group has outstanding refundable security deposits arising from the said operating
lease agreements amounting to #232.44 million and £226.26 million as at March 31, 2017

and December 31, 20186, respectively.,

The future minimum lease payments from the non-cancellable operating lease agreements

follow:
March 31, December 31,
2017 2016
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Nol later than 1 year 871,886,026 R761,315,955
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 3,409,726,226 3,346,283,230

Finance lease

These involve leases of transportation equipment which were accounted for as finance
leases. The components of the finance lease obligation as at March 31, 2017 and

December 31, 2016 arising from these leases are as follows:

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Gross finance lease obligations
Not later than one year £43,808,408 £62,083,010
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 48,795,921 44,422 597
92,604,329 106,505,607
Future finance lease charges on the finance lease
Not later than one year (6,121,077} (11,256,327)
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years (4,158,696) (8,054,301)
(10,279,773) (19,310,628)
£8§2,324,556 £87,194,979




The present value of minimum lease payments is as follows:

March 31, December 31,

2017 2016

(Unaudited) {Audited)

Not later than | vear £37,687,331 £50,826,633
Later than [ year but not later than 3 years 44,637,225 36,368,206

P£82,324,556 £87,194,979

Interest expense on the above finance lease obligation charged to finance costs amounted
to #3.07 million and £2.98 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

18. Retirement Benefits

The components of liability recognized in the interim consolidated statements of financial

position for the existing retirement plan is as follows:

March 31, December 31,

2017 2016

{(Unaudited) (Audited)

Present value of defined benefit obligation £752,441,763 R743,821,499
Fair value of plan assets (23,723,163) (22,794,838)

£728,718,600 £721,026,661

The group has no existing transaction either directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries,
will its cooployees” retirement benefit fund.

The pension cost for the interim period and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as of March 31, 2017 were calculated by exlrapolating the latest actuarial valuation report of
the Group.

19. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group has various financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, due from related parties, available-for-sale investments and ‘short-term
vestments” under other current assets.

The Group’s financial liabilities comprise of accounts and other payables, due to related.
parties, notes payable, transmissions liability, finance lease liabilities and other noncurrent
labilities. The main purpose of these financial Labilities is to finance the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are price risk, interest rate risk,
liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The BOD reviews and approves policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarized as follows:

Price risk

The Group closely monitors the prices of its equity securities as well as macroeconomic and
entity specific factors which could directly or indirectly affect the prices of these instruments.
In case of an expected decline in its portfolio of equity securities, the Group readily disposes or



trades the securities for replacement with more viable and less risky investments.

Such investment securities are subject to price risk due to changes in market values of
instruments arising either from factors specific to individual instruments or their issuers, or
factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The following table shows the effect on other comprehensive income should the change in the
close share price of quoted and unquoted equity securities occur as of March 31, 2017 and

2016 with all other variables held constant.

Effect on other comprehensive income

March 31, March 31,
2017 2016
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Change in share price
Increase by 5% 25,933,799 P15,310,881
Decrease by 5% (B25,933,799) (R15,310,881)

Interest rate risk

The Group is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as the Group’s interest rate on its
cash and cash equivalents and notes payable is fixed and none of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities is measured at fair value. The impact of fluctuation on interest rates on the
Group's finance leases will not significantly impact the results of operations.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk from inability to meet obligations when they become due, because
of failure to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding. The Group ensures that sufficient
liquid assets are available to meet short-term funding and regulatory capital requirements.

The Group has a policy of regularly monitoring its cash position to ensure that maturing
liabilities will be adequately met.

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out
markel positions. Management believes that cash generated from operations is sufficient to
meet daily working capital requirements.

Surplus cash is invested into a range of short-dated money time deposits, which seek to ensure
the security and liquidity of investment while optimizing yield.

The Group expects to generate cash flows from its operating activities mainly on sale of
services. The Group also has sufficicnt cash and adequate amount of credit facilities with
banks to meet any unexpected obligations.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of financial assets and financial
Liabilities will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure
to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates to the Group’s operating activities when
revenue or expenses are denominated in a different currency from the Group’s fimctional
currency.
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The Group operates internationally through its various international affiliates by fulfilling the
money remittance and cargo delivery services of these related parties. This exposes the Group
to foreign exchange risk primarily with respect to Euro (EUR), Hongkong Dollar (HKD),
Australian Dollar (AUD) Taiwanese Dollar (TWD), US Dollar (USD), Great British Pound
(GBP) and Canadian Dollar (CAD). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operalions.

The Group enters into short-term forei gn currency forwards, if needed, to manage its foreign
currency risk from foreign currency denominated transactions.

Information on the Group’s foreign currency-denominated monetary assets recorded under
‘trade and other receivables” in the consolidated statements of financial position and their

Philippine Peso equivalents follow:

Maxch 31, 2017 (Unaudited)

Foreign currency Peso equivalent
Euro 2,918,740 155,393,718
Hongkong Dollars 15,676,100 101,581,128
Australian Dollars 1,259,731 48,613,019
Taiwanese Dollars 66,648,834 109,304,088
US Dollars 977,342 49,130,982
Great British Pound 219,736 13,746,684

The traasiaion exchange rates used were £53.24 10 FUR £, P64S 10 HKID 1, £38.59 10 AUD 1, £1.64 10 TWD 1, B50.27 1o USD
L aind R62.56 10 GBP 1 i 201 7.

December 31, 2016 {Audited)

Foreign currency Peso equivalent
Euro 2,851,734 £150,600,073
Hongkong Dollars - 17,813,579 114,363,177
Australian Dollars 2,768,961 103,033,039
Taiwanese Dollars 59,719,397 93,759,453
US Dollars 1,249,172 62,171,290
Great British Pound 194,844 12,039,411

The translation exchange rates used were B52.81 10 EUR L R6A2 10 HKD 1, B37.2] 10 AUD {. BL57 to TWD 1, R49.77 to USD
Fand B61.7Y to GBP | in 2016,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates, with all variables held constant, of the Group”s income before tax (due to

changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Increase (decrease) in

Reascnably possible change in foreign incomme before tax

exchange rate for every two units of March 31,2017  December 31, 2016

Philippine Peso (Unaudited) (Audited)
22 $175,400,966 2169,195,374
(2) (175,400,966) (169,195,374)

There is no impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting profit or loss. The
movement in sensitivity analysis is derived from current observations on fluctuations in dollar
average exchange rates.

The Group recognized £23.84 million and 232.04 million foreign exchange gains - net, for the
three months period ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, arising from settled
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transactions and translation of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
and other payables.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

Credit risk is monitored and actively managed by way of strict requirements relating to the
creditworthiness of the counterparty at the point at which the transactions are concluded and
also throughout the entire life of the transactions, and also by way of defining risk limits.

The maximum credit risk exposure of the Group’s financial assets is equal to the carrying
amounts i the consolidated statements of financial position.

There are no collaterals held as security or other credit enhancements attached to the Group’s
financial assets.

Cuapital Management

The Group’s objectives in managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern so that it can continue to provide shareholder returns and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital and thus, increase the value of
sharcholder investment,

In order o maintain a healthy capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. Management has assessed
that the Group is self-sufficient based on historical and current operating results.

The capital that the Group manages is equal to the total equity as shown in the consolidated
statements of financial position at March 31, 2017 and December 3 I, 2016 amounting to
P2,681.84 million and £2,462.99 million, respectively.

. Fair Values

The methods and assumptions used by the Group in estimating the fair value of the financial
instrumeats are as follows:

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, due from/to
related parties, short-term cash investments, accounts and other payables, transmissions
liability and the current portion of notes payable and lease liabilities approximate their fair
value. These financial instruments are relatively short-term in nature.

The fair value of quoted AFS investment is the current closing price while the unquoted AFS
investment is based on the published net asset valie per unit as of reporting date.

The estimated fair value of long-term portion of notes payable is based on the discounted value
of future cash flow using applicable rates ranging from 4.14% to 4.20%.

The fair value of the long-term portion of lease liabilities is based on the discounted value of
future cash flow using applicable interest rates ranging from 7.50% to 8.00% for 2017 and
2016.
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The estimated fair value of other noncurrent liabilities is based on the discounted value of
future cash flow using applicable rate of 12.28%.

The discounting used Level 3 inputs such as projected cash flows and other market data.

The Group’s investment in AFS are already at fair value. ‘I'he unquoted AFS investment
presented under current asset is classified under the Level 2 category as at March 31, 2017
while the quoted investment under noncurrent asses is classified under the Level 1 category as
at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and year ended December 31, 2016, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers into and
out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

(2

. Segment Reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based on the information reviewed by the
executive committee for purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The Group's two main operating segments comprise of logistics and money transfer services.
The executive comumittee considers the business from product perspective.

The Group’s logistics products are geared toward both retail and corporate clients. The main
services offered under the Group’s logistics business are domestic and international courier
and freight forwarding services (by way of air, sea and ground transport).

Money transfer services comprise of remittance services (including branch retail services,
prepaid remittance cards and online and mobile remit) and bills payment collection and
corporate remittance payout services. Money transfer services include international presence
through its branches which comprises international inbound remittance services.

The Group only reports revenue line item for this segmentation. Assets and liabilities and cost
and expenses are shared together by these two segments and, as such, cannot be reliably
separated.

The following table presents the amount of revenues generated from these segments:

For the tliree months ended

March 31, March 31,
2017 2016
(Unandited) (Unaudited)

Logistics
Retail £1,385,623,012 £1,151,188,610
Corporate 795,382,896 598,929,554

2,181,005,908 1,750,118,164

Money transfer services
Domestic 257,187,945 286,968,863
International inbound 19,991,607 29,389,617
277,179,552 316,358,480
£2,458,185,460 $2,066,476,644




The revenue of the Company consists mainly of sales to external customers. Revenue arising
from service fees charged (o affiliates amounted to £91.48 million and £86.81 million in
March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Seasonality of Operations

The Group’s operation tends to experience increased volume in remittance transinission as
well as cargo throughout the second quarter and fourth quarter of the year, particularly during
the start of the school year and during the holiday season.
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Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

For the three months ended

March 31, March 31,
2017 2016
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Net income attributable to equity holder of the

Parent Company £229.491,376 £208,465,956

Divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding 1,425,865,471 1,425,865,471
£0.16 £0.15

23. Note to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

In 2017, the Group has the following non-cash transactions under:

Investing activities

a.) Unpaid acquisitions of property and equipment amounted to 26.00 million during the vear.

Financing activities

a.} Accrued interest amounted to 3,15 million.

24, Other Matters

Closure of LBC Development Bank, Inc.

On September 9, 2011, the BSP, through Monetary Board Resolution No. 1334, resolved to
close and place LBC Development Bank Inc.’s (the “Bank™) assets and affairs under
recelvership.

On December 8, 2011, the Philippine Deposit Insurance Company (PDIC), as the official
recetver and liquidator of closed banks, demanded on behalf of the Bank that LBC Holdings
USA Corporation (LBC US) pay for its alleged outstanding obligations to LBC Bank
amounting (o approximately £1.00 billion, a claim that LBC US has denied as being baseless
and unfounded. No further demand on this matter has been made by the PDIC since then,
although there are no assurances that the claim has been waived or abandoned in whole or in
part, or that the PDIC will not institute relevant proceedings in court or serve another demand
letter to LBC US.
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[n relation to the Bank's closure and receivership, as discussed in Note 13, the receivables
amounting to £295.00 million were written-off in 2011.

On March 17 and 29, 2014, the PDIC’s external counsel sent letters to LBCE, demanding
collection of the alleged amounts totaling £1.79 billion. On March 24 and 29, 2014, July 29,
2014, June 17, 2015 and June 26, 2015, the same legal counsel sent collection letters addressed
to LBC Systems, Inc. [Formerly LBC Mundial Inc.] [Formerly LBC Mabuhay USA
Corporation], demanding the payment of amounts aggregating to £911.59 million, all on
behalf of the Bank.

On May [3. 2015, the Department of Justice (“DOJ7) issued subpoenas to some of the
stockhiolders of the Bank, directing them to submit their counter-affidavits in connection with
the conduct of 4 preliminary investigation over a complaint filed by the PDIC. The
preliminary investigation is an inquiry to determine whether there is sufficient ground that the
offenses alleged have been committed, and if trial should be held. The stockholders submitted
their counter-atfidavits, and the matter is now submitted for resolution by the DOJ.

On November 2, 2015, the Bank, through PDIC, filed a civil case against LBCE and LBCDC
before the regional trial court of Makati (“RTC?), among other respondents, for a total
collection of an alleged amount of 1.82 billion (the “Complaint™). The case is in relation to
the March 17, 2014 demand letter representing collection of unpaid service fees due from June
2006 to August 2011 and service charges on remittance transactions from January 2010 to
September 2011, The increase in the amount from the demand letter to the amount contained
in the case was explained by PDIC in the complaint as attributable to their discovery that the
supposed payments of LBCE seem to be unsupported by actual cash inflow to the Bank.

On December 28, 2015, the summons, together with a copy of the Complaint and the writ of
preliminary attachment, were served on the former Corporate Secretary of LBCE. The writ of
preliminary attachment resulted in the following: (a) tagging of the 1,205,974,632 shares of
LBCH in the name of LBCDC, and (b) the attachment of various bank accounts of LBCE
totaling £6.90 million. The tagging of the shares in the record of the stock transfer agent has
the effect of preventing the registration or recording of any transfers of shares in the records,
unless the writ of attachment is lifted, quashed or discharged.

On January 12, 2016, LBCE and LBCDC, among other defendants, filed with the RTC, a
separate Motion to Dismiss the Complaint. On January 21, 2016, LBCE and LBCDC filed
their Urgent Motion to Approve the Counterbond and Discharge the Writ of Attachment.

On February 17, 2016, the RTC granted LBCE and LBCDE’s motion and issued the order to
lift and set aside the writ of preliminary attachment. The order to lift and set aside the
preliminary attachment directs the sheriff of the court to deliver to LBCE and LBCDC all
properties previously garnished pursuant to the writ of preliminary attachment. The
counterbond delivered by LBCE and LBCDC shall stand in place of the properties so released
and shall serve as security to satisfy any final Judgment in the case.

In a joint resolution dated June 28, 2016 (the “Joint Resolution”), the RTC tesolved to deny the
Motions to Dismiss [liled by the defendants, including LBCE. On July 18, 2016, LBCE,
together with the other defendants, filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the Joint Resolution.
PDIC then filed its Comment/ Opposition on August 10, 2016, followed by the defendants’
reply on August 26, 2016, PDIC*s Rejoinder on September 26, 2016, and defendants’ Sur-
Rejoinder on November 16, 2016. Thereafter, in an Order dated January 26, 2017, the Motion
for Reconsideration was deemed submitted for resolution. On February 23, 2017, LBCE
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received the RTC’s resolution denying the Motion for Reconsideration of the Joint Resolution.
On February 28, 2017, LBCE filed a Motion for Extension of Time to File Answer, asking for
addltional period of 15 days, or until March 15, 2017 to file Answers. The ultimate outcome
of the case cannot presently be determined.

In relation to the above case, in the opinion of management and in concurrence with its legal
counsel, any liability of LBCE is not probable and estimable at this point in time.

25. Subsequent Events

On April 19, 2017, the BOD of LBCH approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting
to #827.00 million or P0.58 for every issued and outstanding common share. The record date
of the entitlement to said cash dividends shall be the end of business day on May 19, 2017 and
payment date shall be on June 9, 2017.



L.BC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

[

Supplementary schedules required by Annex 68-E

Schedule A: Financial Assets

Schedule B: Amounts Receivable trom Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and
Principal Stockholder (Other Than Related Parties)

Schedule C: Amounts Receivables/Payables from/to Related Parties Which are Eliminated
During the Consolidation of Financial Statements

Schedule D: Intangible Assets

Schedule E: Long Term Debt

Schedule F: Indebtedness to Related Parties

Schedule G: Guarantees of Securities of other Issuers

Schedule H: Capital Stock

Map of the relationships of the companies within the Group
Reconciliation of retained earnings available for dividend declaration
Schedule of financial soundness indicators

Schedule of all the effective standards and interpretations
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RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE F OR DIVIDEND
DECLARATION
As of March 31, 2017

LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC.
General Aviation Center, Domestic Alrport, Pasay City, Metro Manila

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted to available
for dividend distribution, beginning

Add: Net Income actually earned/realized during the period

Net income during the period closed to Retained Eariiings

Less:

Equity in net income of associate/joint venture

Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except those attributable to cash and cash
equivalents): Unrealized actuarial gain

Fair value adjustment (M2M gains)

Fair value adjnstment of investment property resulting to gain

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP gain

Other unrealized gains or adjustiments to the retained earnings as a result of certain
transactions accounted for under the PFRS

Deferred tax assets

Subtotal

Add: Non actual losses

Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS / GAAP — loss

Loss on fair value adjusiment of investment property (after tax)

Add(Less):

Dividend declarations during the period
Appropriations of Retained Earnings during the period
Reversals of appropriations

Lffects of prior period adjustments

Treasury shares

Effect of pooling-of-interest methad

£8,270,395

841,561,769

Total Retained Earnings, end
Available for dividend declaration

£849,832,164

-10-



LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2017 AND FOR THE YEAR
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Financial Soundness Indicarors

Below are the financial ratios that are relevant to the Group for the three months period ended March
31, 2017 and for the year ended December 31, 2015:

Financial ratios March 31, December

2017 31, 2016

Cuwrent ratio Current assets 1.85:1 1.67:1
Current liabilities '

Debt to equity ratio Total liabilities 1.43:1 1.70:1

Stockholders® Equity
attributable to Parent
Company

Debt to total assets ratio Notes Payable + Lease 0.21:1 0.22:1
Liabilities + Other
Liabilities
Total assets

Return on average assets Net income attributable to
Parent Company 3.44% 14.52%
Average assets

Book value per share Stockholders’ equity
attributable to Parent
Company £1.92 £1.76
Total mumber of shares

Barnings per share Net income attributable to
Parent Company £0.16 R0O.65
Total number of shares

11 -



LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF ALL EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
UNDER PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued the amended Securities Regulation
Code Rule SRC Rule 68 and 68.1 which consolidates the two separate rules and labeled in the
amendment as “Part I and “Part 117, respectively. It also prescribed the additional schedule
requirements for large entities showing a list of all effective standards and interpretations under
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Below is the list of all effective PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine
Interpretations of International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as of
March 31, 2017:

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary v

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 |First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting v
(Revised) | Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1: Cost of an Investment in a v
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for 4

First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from v

Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time

Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and v

Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v

Amendments to PFRS 1:Borrowing Cost ¥

Amendments to PFRS 1:Meaning of “Effective PERS” v
PFRS 2 | Share-based Payment v

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v

Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- v

based Payment Transactions

Definition of Vesting Condition v
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PFRS 3

Business Combinations

Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination

Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements

PEFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Financial Guaraniee Contracts

PIFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Changes in Methods of Disposal

PIFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Servicing Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of F mancial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclesures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendinents to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures *

Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to -
Condensed Interim Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 7: Hedge Accounting (2013
version) *

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation
of the Total of the Reportable Scgments™ Assets to the
Entity’s Assets
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PFRS 9“—T

Financial Instruments *

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures *

Financial Instruments; Classification and Measurement
(2010 version) *

Amendments to PFRS 9: Hedge Accounting (2013
version) *

PERS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

PFRS

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities

PFRS

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to PFRS 13:Short Term Receivable and
Payable

Portfolio Exception

PEFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

PERS 16

Leases *

Philippine

Accounting Standards

PAS1

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Amendments to PAS 1:Clarification of the
Requirements for Comparative Information

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of financial
statements - disclosure initiative

PAS 2

Inventories

PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows
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Amendments 1o PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

PAS 10

Events after the Reporting Date

PAS 11

Consiruction Contracts

PAS 12

Income Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Amendment to PAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assels for Unrealized Losses *

PAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment

Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization

Amendments to PAS 16: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

Amendments to PAS 16: Bearer Plants

PAS 17

Leases

PAS 18

Revenue

PAS 19

Employece Benefits

Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate

Amendments to PAS 19:Defined Benefit Plan:
Employee Contributions

PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

PAS 21

The Efiects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

PAS 23 | Borrowing Costs

(Revised)

PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures - Key Management
Personnel
Related Party Disclosures - Key Management
Personnel (Amended)

PAS 26 | Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
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PAS 27

Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities

Amendments to PAS 27: Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

PAS 28

Investiments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities

PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS 32

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

Amendment to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to
Holders of Equity Instruments

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assefs
and Financial Liabilities

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Amendments (o PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting
and Segment Information for Total Assets and
Liabilities

Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the Interim
Financial Report’

PAS 36

Impairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

Revaluation Method ~ Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
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Amendments to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Fmancial
Assets '

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of F inancial
Assels - Eftective Date and Transition

Amendments 10 PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items

Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40

[nvestment Property

Amendments to PAS 40: Clarification on Ancillary
Services

PAS 41 Agriculture
Amendments to PAS 41: Bearer Plants

Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1 |Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2 [Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Instruments

IFRIC 4 | Determining Whether an Arrangement Comains a

Lease

IFRIC S

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Envirommental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC 6

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Lquipment

IFRIC 7

Applving the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
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Eﬁ” L

IFRIC 8

Seope of PFRS 2

IFRIC Y | Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments o Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9: v
Embedded Derivatives

INRIC W0 | Ineerim Financial Reporting and Impairmen v

IFRIC 11 |PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions v

IFRIC 12 |Service Concession Arrangements v

IFRIC 13 | Customer Loyalty Programmes v

IFRIC 14 | The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum 4
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum F unding Requirement

IFRIC 15 | Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate * v

IFRIC 16 | Hedges of a Net [nvestment in a Foreign Operation v

IFRIC 17 | Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners ¥

IFRIC 18 | Transfers of Assets from Customers v

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity v
Instruments

IFRIC 20 | Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface v
Mine

IFRIC 21 |Levies v

SIC-1¢ Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to v
Operating Activities

SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities v
Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12 v

S1C-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary v
Contributions by Venturers

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v

SIC-21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non- v
Depreciable Assets

SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity v

or its Shareholders

51C-27

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the v
Legal Form of a Lease

SEC-29

Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. v




-19.

SHC-30 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services

S1C-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v
* These standards are ot yel effective as of December 31, 2016,

In addition, the 1ASB has issued the following new standards that have not yet been adopted locally by
the SEC and FRSC. The Group is currently assessing the impact of these new standards and plans to
adopt them on their required effective dates once adopted locally.

o FRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective January 1, 2018)

Standards tagged as “Not applicable” have been adopted by the Group but have no significant caovered
transactions for the period ended March 31, 2017,

Standards tagged as “Not adopted” are standards issued but not yet effective as of March 31, 2017.
The Group will adopt the Standards and Interpretations when these become effective,
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Convertible Instrument Purchase Agreement

1 Parties LBC Express Holdings, inc. ("*Company™)
CP Briks Pte. Ltd. ("Purchaser’ or ‘CPG"

2 Transaction On Closing Date, The Purchaser shail subscribe to and purchase from
the Company and the Company hereby shall sell, transfer and defiver
to the Purchaser a secured convertibie instrument due 2024 of the
Company in the aggregate principal amount of U8$50,000,000.00 (the
“‘Instrument”),

3 Purchase Price LIS§50,000,000.00

4 Use of Funds The proceeds of the Instrument shall be used to fund the growth of the
business of the Company, including capital expenditures and working
capital.

5 Closing 15 business days from the satisfaction of condifions precedent

Date/lssuance
Date

6 Principal U8850,000,000.00

7 Interest 0.00%

8 Maturity Date 7" anniversary of Closing Date

9 Payment Date On Maturity Date, the Company shall pay to the holder of the Instrument
an amount in cash representing all outstanding principal.

10 Conversion Rate The number of Common Shares issuable upon conversion of any
Conversion Amount shail be equal to (x) such Conversion Amount
divided by (y) the Conversion Price.

11 Conversion Means the PhP equivalent (based on the applicable PhP-US$

Amount exchange rate) of the principal amount of the Instruments to be
converted with respect to which this determination is being made.

12 Conversion Price Means, as of any conversion date or other date of determination, initiaily
Thirteen Pesos (PhP13.00), subject to adjustment in accordance with
the terms of the Instrument.

13 Company At any time after obtaining pre-approval from the PSE for the listing of

Conversion the underlying shares, if (a) the closing sale price of the Company’s

common shares listed on the PSE is at least 50% above the conversion
price then effect for a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on
the trading date immediately preceding the date of the Company's
notice (the “Company Conversion Measuring Period™), and (b) the
daily trading volume of the Company’s common shares listed on the
PSE equals or exceeds PHP75 million on each day during the Company
Conversion Measuring Period (together, the “Company Conversion
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| shall not exceed US%$10 million in each case.

At any time after obtaining pre-approval from the PSE of the listing of

Conditions™), the Company shall have the right to elect to automatically
convert some or all of the conversion amount up to a multiple of three
times the average daily trading volume of the common shares frading
on the PSE over such Company Conversion Measuring Period. If after
6 months following such conversion, the Company Conversion
Conditions continue to be met, the Company may exercise its right to
effect another conversion; provided, however, that such conversions

the underlying shares, if any offering, placement of shares or similar
transaction is planned by the Company where it reasonably believes
that: (a) the percentage of the Company’s common shares helid by the
public increases to at least 30% as a result of such transaction, (b) the
valug of such offering is not less than US$100 million, and {c) the
common share price is at least PHP22.00 per share (the “Re-IPO
Conditions”}, the Company shall have the right to elect to automatically
convert some or all of the conversion amount. ‘

14

Mandatory
Redemption

At any time after thirty (30) months from the Issuance Date, the Holder
shall have the right to require the Company to redeem all, or, as the
case may be, such portion of the Instrument which has not yet been
previously converted by the Holder and/or the Company provided that
the Holder provides written notice to the Company (“Mandatory
Redemption Notice") which notice shall indicate the Principal amount
of the Instrument that the Holder is electing to require the Company to
redeem. Each portion of the instrument shall be redeemed by the
Company at a price equal to 100% of the Conversion Amount pius an
IRR equal to 13% (inclusive of applicable tax, which shal! be for the
account of the Holder) ("Mandatory Redemption Price"); provided
however, the Mandatory Redemption Price shall be: (1) 12% (inciusive
of applicable tax, which shall be for the account of the Holder) if the
Mandatory Redemption Notice is delivered after the fourth (4th)
anniversary of the {ssuance Date; (2) 11% (inclusive of applicable tax,
which shall be for the account of the Holder) if the Mandatory
Redemption Notice is delivered after the fifth (5th} anniversary of the
Issuance Date; and (3) 10% {inclusive of applicable tax, which shall be
for the account of the Holder) if the Mandatory Redemption Notice is
delivered after the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Issuance Date.

15

Redemption in the
Event of Change of
Controi

No sconer than five business days nor later than 10 business days
following the consummation of a change of control, the Company shail
deliver to the holders a written notice thereof. At any time during the
period beginning after the date of such notice and ending 10 frading
days after the date of such notice, any holder may elect to convert its
instrument and sell the converted commen shares at the price offered
by the purchaser in the change of control transaction or require the
Company to redeem all or any portion of the instrument by delivering
written notice thereof to the Company.

Each portion of the Instrument subject to redemption shall be redeemed
by the Company at a price equal to 100% of the conversion amount
plus an internal rate of return equal to 13% (inclusive of applicable tax,
which shall be for the account of the holder) (the “Change of Contro!
Redemption Price”); provided, however, that the Change of Contro!
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Redemption Price shall be: (i} 12% (inclusive of applicable tax, which
shall be for the account of the holder) if the notice is delivered after the
4™ anniversary of the Issuance Date; (i) 11% (inclusive of applicable
tax, which shall be for the account of the holder) if the notice is delivered
after the 5 anniversary of the Issuance Date: (i) 10% (inclusive of
applicable tax, which shall be for the account of the holder) if the notice
is delivered after the 6 anniversary of the Issuance Date.

|18

| Evénts of Default .

‘of control on a timely basis .

Events of Default
Each of the following shall constitute an event of default:

(@) the Company fails to cure a conversion failure or provides notice to
the holder of the Instrument of its intention not to comply with a request
for conversion into common shares of the tendered Instrument;

(b) the Company fails to pay the holder any amount of principal when
and as due under the Instrument

(c) the Company fails to provide a notice of the occurrence of a change

(d) the Company defaults in the payment when due, after the expiration
of any applicable grace period, of principal of or interest on,
indebtedness of the Company for borrowed monegy, the aggregate
outstanding amount of which is US$5 millioh or any other defaults on
any indebtedness of the Company in excess of US$5 million such that
such indebtedness is accelerated unless such indebtedness is
discharged, or such acceleration is cured, waived, rescinded or nullified
where, in each case, such default continues for a period of 45 days after
written notice is received by the Company

{(e) (i) the commencement by the Company of a voluntary case or
proceeding under any applicable bankruptey or similar law (*"Bankruptcy
Law"), (ify the entry of an order for relief against the Company in an
involuntary case, unless stayed, suspended, reversed or otherwise
dismissed or held in abeyance by a competent court within 45 days
thereof, (iii) the consent of the Company to appoint a receiver, trustee,
assignee, liquidator, custodian or similar officer (a “Custodian™), (iv) the
making by the Company of a general assignment for the benefit of its
creditors, (v) the filing by the Company or a petition or answer or
consent seeking reorganization or relief under any Bankruptcy Law in
the context of a bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization proceeding or
the consent of the Company to the filing of such petition, or (vi) the
admission in writing by the Company that it is generally unable to pay
its debts as they become due

(f) the entry by a court of competent jurisdiction in the premises of any
order or decree under any applicable Bankruptcy Law for relief in
respect of the Company in an involuntary case or proceeding, or a
decree or order adjudging the Company to be bankrupt or insolvent, or
approving as properly filed a petition seeking reorganization or relief
under any Bankruptcy Law, or appointing a Custodian of the Company
or ordering the liquidation of the Company, in each case, unless such
order has been duly stayed, suspended, reversed or otherwise
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dismissed or ﬁeld in abeyance by a competent court within 45 days
thereof

(g) the entry of a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction for
the payment of money aggregating in excess of US$10 million against
the Company and which judgment is not, within 45 days after entry
thereof, bonded, discharged or stayed pending appeal, or is not
discharged within 45 days after the expiration of such stay; provided,
that any judgment which is covered by an insurance or indemnity from
a creditworthy party shall not be included in caiculating the US$10
million amount so long as the Company provides the holder a written
staternent from such insurer or indemnity provider {in a form reasonably
satisfactory to the required holder) to the effect that such judgment is
covered by insurance or an indemnity and the Com pany will receive the
proceeds of such insurance or indemnity within 45 days of the issuance
of such judgment

{h) other than as specifically set forth in (a}, the Company breaches any
other term or condition of this Instrument and the default continues for
a period of 60 days after wiitten notice of such breach demanding the
Company to remedy the same shall have been given to the Company
by the required holders

(i} within 1 month from the Issuance Date, the Company fails to
discontinue payments of royalties to LBC Development Corporation
(“LBCDEV") or its affiliates

(i} any breach of the transaction documents, including the pledge
agreement

{k) the sale by LBCDEV of 10% or more of the Company's common
shares to a foreign investor without the consent of the holder

Consequences of a Default

if an event of default shall have oceurred and be continuing, the holder
may require the Company to redeem all or any portion of the Instrument,
provided the holder provides written notice to the Company within the
applicable period. Each portion of the Instrument subject to redemption
shall be redeemed by the Company at a price equal to 100% of the
conversion amount plus an internal rate of return equal to 16%
{inclusive of applicable tax, which shall be for the account of the holder).

Other rights of CPG in case of Defauit

CPG shall be entitled to exercise all its rights, powers and remedies
vested under the pledge agreement (and related transaction
agreements), including: (i) receive all amounts payable and al! property
and instruments deliverable in respect of the relevant pledged
collateral; (ii) vote all or any part of the shares forming part of the
pledged collateral; and (ii)) proceed before a notary public for the sale
of the pledged collateral at a pubiic auction.

17

Security

The obligations of the Company under the Instrument shall be secured
by a pledge over all of the Company's shares in LBC Express, Inc. in

.4
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favor of CPG, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company in a meeting called for this purpose. Pending approval of the
shareholders of the Company being secured, the obligations of the
Company shall be secured by a third party pledge to be extended by
LBC Development Corporation, the parent company, over 51% of the
cutstanding capital stock of the Company cwned and held by LECDEV.

18

Governing Law

The agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the Philippine law without giving effect to any confiicts of laws principles

thereof that would otherwise require the application of the law of any
‘| other jurisdiction. :

1. Piedge Agreement

celtem o] SSuUbject o e e s e SR
1 Parties LBC Development Corporation (LBCDEV) as pledgor
LBC Express Holdings, inc. (LBCEH) as pledgor
CP Briks Pte. Ltd. (CPG) as pledgee
2 Benefit of | The pledge is and shall be constituted in favor of CPG for CPG's beneiit,
Pledge to secure the payment of the Secured Obligations.
3 Secured All loans, advances, debts, liabilities, obligations and amounts, howsoever
Obligations arising, owed by the Company to CPG under or in connection with the
Instrument
4 Creation of = On the Closing Date, LBCDEV shall grant to CPG a first-priority security
Pledge interest in the LBCDEV Pledged Coliateral as security for the full payment
and performance of the Secured Obligations, in accordance with the terms
and conditions set forth in the Pledge Agreement {the “LBCDEV Pledge™.
Effective as of the day before the termination of the LBCDEV Pledge,
LBCEH shall grant to CPG a first-priority security interest in the LBCEH
Pledged Collateral as security for the full payment and performance of the
Secured Obligations, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth
in the Pledge Agreement,
5 Pledged Means, as applicable, (i) the shares of stock of LBCEH owned by
Collateral LBCDEV in the aggregate number of 727,191,391 common shares,
representing fifty one percent (51%) of LBCEH's issued share capital
("LBCDEV Pledged Collateral”); and (ii) the common shares of stock of
LBC Express, Inc. owned by LBCEH in the aggregate number of
1,041,180,504 common shares, representing one hundred percent
| (100%) of LBC Express, Inc.'s issued share capital, including after-
acquired shares (‘LBCEH Pledged Collateral”).
& Termination  of | Upon execution and delivery by LBCEH and CPG of a Piedge Supplement
LBCDEV granting CPG a continuing security interest of first priority in the LBCEH
Pledged Piedged Collateral and delivery by LBCEH to CPG of the LBCEH Pledged
Collateral Collateral.
7 Termination of | The date on which all Secured Obligations have been fully and finally
LBCEH Pledged | discharged to CPG's satisfaction, whether or not as the result of
Coliateral enforcement.
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8 Governing Law | The Pledge Agreement shall be governed and interpreted by, and
construed in accordance with the laws of the Philippines.




